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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
WESTERN DIVISION
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff,
V. CIVIL ACTION NO. 1:11CV059
HENRY E. BAILEY,
Cincinnati, Ohio 45236

Defendant.
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COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

The United States of America alleges aé follows:

1. This action is brought by the United States to enforce the provisions of Title VIII of
.the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (the Fair Housing Act), as amended by the Fair Housing
Amendments Act of 1988, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 to 3619.

2. Thé Court has jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 28 U.S.C. § 1345 and
42 U.S.C. § 3614(a).

3. Defendant Henry E. Bailey (“Henry Bailey”) resides in Cincinnati, Ohio, within the
Southern District of Ohio.

4. Atall times relevant to this action, Defendant Henry Bailey has been the owner of several
residential rental properties located in the Cincinnati, Ohio, area in the Southern District
of Ohio. Specifically, from approximately March 1991 to the present, Defendant Henry
Bailey has owned a nine unit apartment building located at 131 Kinsey Avenue in
Cincinnati, Ohio, and a nine unit apartment building located at 135 Kinsey Avenue in

Cincinnati, Ohio. From approximately January 2000 to the present, Defendant Henry
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Bailey has owned a four unit apartment building located at 3642 Northdale Place, in
Cincinnati, Ohio. From approximately July 2002 to July 2010, Defendant Henry Bailey
owned a ﬁvé unit apartment building located at 4200 Redwood Ter_race in St. Bernard,
.Ohio. From approximately December 2000 to December 2007, Defendant Henry Bailey
owned a three four unit apartment buildings located at 6046 Stover Avenue, 6056 Stover
Avenue and 6065 Stover Avenue in Cincinnati, dhio. me appfoximately December
2000 to May 2008, Defendant Henry Bailey owned a four unit apartment building located
at 6066 Stover Avenue in Cincinnati, Oh.io7

5. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) because: the defelidént resides in the
Southern District of Ohio; the actions giving rise to the United States’ allegations
occurred iﬁ the Southern District of Ohio; and the properties identified in paragraph four
that are the subject of this action are located in the Southern Distfict of Ohio.

6. The properties identified in paragraph four and the apértments located therein are
dwellings within the meaning of 42 U.S.C. § 3602(b).

7. During all times that Defendant Henry Bailéy owned each of the pr.operties' identified in
paragraph 4, he controlled and/or had the power to control all aspects of the management
of each property including, but not limited to, éhowing available dwellings to prospective
tenants, collecting rent, keeping track of past due rent, evicting tenants, accepting
requests for repairs, making repairs, and performing maintenance.

8. From at least 2008 through the present, Defendant Henry Bailey on multiple occasions
subj ected. actual and prospective female tenants of the subj ect properties to discrimination

- on the basis of sex, including severe, pervasive and unwelcome sexual haréssment. Such

conduct has included, but is not limited to:
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a. Making unwelcome sexual advances and unwelcome sexual comments to female
tenants and prospective tenants;

b. Entering the apartments of female tenants without permission and notice; |

c. Groping or otherwise touching female tenants and prospective tenants without their
consent in a sexual or otherwise suggestive manner;

d. Offering and grantingr tangible housing benefits, including fédﬁced rent, overlooking
late or unpaid rent in exchange for sexual favors, and performing maintenance or
repairs in exchange for sexual favors ; and |

e. Denying tangible housing benefits to tenants or prospective tenants, such as refusing
to make repairs or perform maintenan‘ce,A or refusing to offer discounts on rent or
other fees because the individual has not provided requested sexual favors; and

f. Taking adverse housing actiéns against female tenants Who have not granted
requested sexual favors, including evicting or'initiating eviction proceedings against
such tenants.

9. The conduct of Defendant Henry Bailey described above constitutes:

a. A denial of housing or making hoﬁsing unavailable because of sex, in Vioiation of
Section 804(a) of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 36'04(2'1);

b. Discrimination in the terms, conditions, or privileges of the rental of dwellings, or in
the provision of services or facilities in connection therewith, because of sex, in
violation of Sectioﬁ 804(b) of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3604(b);

c. The making of statements with respect to the rental of dwellings that indicate a
preference, limitation, or discrimination based on sex, in Violation of Section 804(c)

of the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3604(c); and
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d. Coercion, intimidation, threats or interference with persons in the exercise or
enjoyment of, or on account of their having exercised or enjoyed, their rights' under
Section 804 éf the Fair Housing Act, in violation of Section 818 of the Fair Housing
Act, 42 U.S.C. § 3617.

10. The conduct of Defendant Henry Bailey .constitutes:

a. A pa&em or p.racticé of resistancé to the ﬁﬂl enjoyment of rights granted by the Fair
Housing Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601; et seq.; and

b. A denial to a group of persons of rights granted by the Fair Housing Act, 42 U.S.C.
§§3 601, et seq., which dénial raises an issue of general public irﬁportance.

11. Female tenants, prospective tenants, and persons associated with them have been injured
by Defendant Henry Bailey’s discriminatory conduct. Such persoﬁs are aggrieved
persons as defined in 42 U.S.C. § 3602(i), and have suffered damages as a resulf of
Defendant Henry Bailey’s conduct. r

12. Defendaﬁt Henry Bailey’é conduct was intentional, willful, énd/ or taken in reckless

| disregard for the rights of others. '

WHEREFORE, the United States prays that the Court enter an ORDER that:

L. Declarés that Defendant Henry Bailey’s discriminatory practices violate the Fair Housing
Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601, et seq.;

2. Enjoins Defendant Hénry Bailey, his agents, .employees, and sucoéssors, and all other
persons in active concert or participation with him from:

a. Discriminating on account of sex against any person in any aspect of the rental of a

_dwelling;
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b. Interfering with or threatening to take any action against ény person engaged in the
exercise or enjoyment of rights granted or protected by the Fair Housing Act, as
amended;

¢. Failing or refusing to take such affirmative steps as may be necessary to restore, as
nearly as practicable, the victims of Defendant Henry Bailey’s past unlawful practices
fo the bosiﬁon they would have been inr but for the discrilniﬁétory conduct; and

d. Failing or refusing to take such affirmative steps as may be necessary to prevent the
recurrence of aﬁy discriminatory conduct in the future and to eliminate, to the extent
practicable, the effects of Defendant Henry Bailey’s unlawful practices.

3. Awards monetary damages to each identifiable victim of Defendant Henry Bailey’s
discriminatory housing practices for injuries caused by Deféndant Henry‘ Bailey’s
discriminatory conduct, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 3614(d)(1>)(B); and

4, Assesses ciﬁl penalties against Defendant Henry Bailey in order to vindicate the public
interest, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 36 14(d)(1)(C).

The United States further prays for such addit1011al relief as the interests of justice may

| require. | |
Dated: January 31, 2011 Respectfully submitted,

ERIC H. HOLDER, JR.
Attorney General

s/Thomas E. Perez
THOMAS E. PEREZ
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division
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s/Steven H. Rosenbaum

STEVEN H. ROSENBAUM

Chief

Housing and Civil Enforcement Section
Civil Rights Division

s/Timothy J. Moran

TIMOTHY J. MORAN

Deputy Chief ,

[llinois Bar Number 06207397
TANYA ILONA KIRWAN

Trial Attorney

Maryland Bar

Attorneys for Plaintiff United States
Housing and Civil Enforcement Section
Civil Rights Division

U.S. Department of Justice

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W.
Northwestern Building, 7 Floor
Washington, DC 20530

Tel.: (202) 305-4973

Fax: (202) 514-1116
timothy.moran@usdoj.gov
tanya.kirwan@usdoj.gov

CARTER M. STEWART
United States Attorney

s/Donetta D. Wiethe
DONETTA D. WIETHE
Deputy Civil Chief

Ohio Bar Number 0028212
Attorney for Plaintiff United States
United States Attorney’s Office
for the Southern District of Ohio
221 East 4™ Street, Suite 400
Cincinnati, OH 45202 -

Tel.: (513) 684-3711

Fax: (513) 684-6972
donetta.wiethe@usdoj.gov
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